
EXHIBIT E 

ANALYSIS OF BOONE COUNTY UNDERLYING BOND RATING 



Boone County, Kentucky, currently has an underlying rating provided by 
Moody’s Investor Service of Aa2. As noted by Moody’s rating service, municipal issuers 
in the Aa category demonstrate very strong creditworthiness relative to other IJS 
municipal or tax-exempt issuers. The numerical modifier to the rating category indicates 
a mid-range ranking within the Aa underlying rating category. 

Municipal Ratings are opinions of the investment quality of issuers and issues in 
the United States municipal and tax-exempt markets. These ratings incorporate Moody’s 
assessment of the default probability and loss severity of these issues and issuers. 
Municipal Ratings are based upon the analysis of four primary factors relating to 
municipal finance: economy, debt, finances, and administratiadmanagement strategies. 
Each of the factors is evaluated individually and for its effect on the other factors in the 
context of the municipality’s ability to repay its debt. 



EXHIBIT F 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND PROPOSED FINANCING OF THE PROJECT 
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BOONE COUNTY WATER SUBDISTRICT B (PHASE Ill) 

Less Grant Funds ($1,000,000) 
Add Capitalized Interest $1 15,841 

]Add COI (UD, Legal, FA) $86,011 
Amount Financed $2,750,000 
Term (yw) 30 
Avg Rate 4.450% 

PROJECTED REVENUE 

-.--_-I_ RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMER HISTORY ------1-1- 

13,506 
1,587.231,177 11,166 i 1998 # Customers 

1998 # Customers 
1998 # Gallons Sold 

YO Customer Growth 20.96% 
Average Monthly Usage (gallons) 7,745 

Cost of Water I 1,000 gallons 

Administrative B Servicing Cost 

$2.65 

$.75/1,000 gallons 

WNDFLOW - LOW GROWTH 
----1-1- VARIABLES - RESIDENTIAL RATES --- 

Expected # of New Customers 
Annual YO Customer Growth 
Avg monthly usage per Customer (gallons) 
Customer tarriff increase expected by BCWD 

406 

5.00% 
6,000 

1st 10 years; thereafter @ 2.5%/yr 

Monthly Surcharge Proposed, if any $25.00 
Avg Customer 

First 3,000 Gallons (Minimum) 

Next 2,000 Gallons' 
Next 5,000 Gallons' 

Current BCWD Month& Bill 
$15.45 $15.45 
$4.65 $9.30 
$4.40 $4.40 

Over 10,000 Gallons' $3.65 
Avg Customer Assessment & Surcharge 
Avg Customer Monthly Bill $29.15 $54.15 

--- Paid to Boone County WD - Net Annual Surplus (+j 
Less Cosf Less OBM Available to Payments Shortfall (-) Cumulative . -  

Year Customers Revenue Monthly Bill Revenue Receipts of Water Fees Service Debt Bonas flows flow 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2016 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 
2030 
2031 
2032 
2033 
2035 

244 
256 
269 
282 
296 
31 1 
326 
343 
360 
378 
387 
397 
407 
417 
428 
438 
449 
460 
472 
484 
496 
508 
521 
534 
547 
561 
575 
589 
604 

$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
554.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 

$158,291 $158,291 
$166,206 $166,206 
$174,516 $174,516 
$183,242 $183,242 
$192,404 $132,404 
$202,024 $202,024 
$212,125 $212,125 
$222,732 $222,732 
$233,868 $233,868 
$245,562 $245,562 
$251,701 $251,701 
$257,993 $257,993 
$264,443 $264,443 
$271,054 $27?.054 
$277.831 $277.831 
$284,776 $284.776 
$291,896 $291.896 
.$299,193 $299,193 
$306,673 $306,673 
$314,340 $314,340 
$322,198 $322198 
$330,253 $330,253 
$338,510 $338.510 
$346,972 $346,972 
$355,647 $355,647 
$364,536 $364,538 
$373,651 $373,651 
$382,992 $382,992 
$392,567 $392,567 

$46,479 $1 3.1 54 
$48,803 $13,812 
$51,243 $14,503 
$53,805 $15,228 
$56.495 515,989 
$59,320 $16,789 
$62,286 $17.628 
$65,400 $18,510 
$68,670 $19,435 
$72,104 $20.407 
$73,907 $20,917 
$75,754 $21,440 
$77.648 $21.976 
$79.569 $22,525 
$81,579 $23,088 
$83,619 $23,666 
$85,709 $24,257 
$87,852 $24,864 
$90,048 $25,485 
$92,299 $26.122 
$94,607 $26,775 
$96,972 $27,445 
$99,396 $28.131 
$107,861 $28,834 
$104,428 $29,555 
$107,039 $30,294 
$109,715 $31,051 
$1 12,458 $31.828 
$115,269 532.623 

$98,658 
$103.591 
$108,770 
$114,203 
$119,919 
$125,915 
$132,211 
$138,822 
$145.763 
$153,051 
$156,877 
5160,799 
$164,813 
$168,940 
$1 73,163 
$177.492 
$181,929 
$186,478 
$1 91,140 
$195,918 
$200,816 
$205.836 
$210.982 
$216,257 
$221,663 
$227.205 
$232.885 
$238,707 
$244,675 

$171,709 
$170,213 
$168,623 
$171,940 
$170,002 
$167.962 
$170,832 
$168,440 
$170,990 
$168,288 
$170.530 
$167,522 
$169,470 
$171,166 
$172,604 
$168,779 
$169,900 
$170,758 
$171,348 
$171,665 
$171,737 
$171,551 
$171,103 
$170,390 
$169,410 
$168,133 
$171,623 
$169,648 

$98,658 
($68,118) 
($61,442) 
($54,414) 
($52,021) 
($44.087) 
($35,751) 
($32,010) 
($22,677) 
(517,939) 
($1 1,410) 
(53,730) 
($2,703) 
($530) 
$1,998 
$4,888 
$13,150 
$16,578 
$20,382 
$24,570 
$29,151 
$34,099 
$39,432 
$45,154 
$51,273 
$57,795 
$64,753 
$67.085 
$75,027 

$98,658 
$30,540 
($30,902) 
($85.316) 
($1 37,336) 
(5181,423) 
($217.174) 
($249,184) 
($289,800) (5271,861) 

($301,210) 
($310,340) 
($313.643) 
($314,173) 
($31 2,176) 
($307,287) 
($294,137) 
($277,559) 
($257,178) 
($232,607) 
($203,456) 
($169,357) 
($129,925) 
1$84,771) 
($33.497) 
$24,298 
$89,050 
$1 56,135 
$231,163 

21-Mar45 

2036 619 $54.15 $402,381 $402,381 $1 18,151 $33.439 $250,792 $167,440 $83,352 $314,514 
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BOONE COUNTY WATER SUBDISTRICT B (PHASE 111) 

21-Mar45 

PROJECTED REVENUE FU 

Bond Sizing: 
Total Project Costs $3,548,148 
Less Grant Funds ($1,000,000] 
Add Capitalized fnterest $1 15.841 
Add COI (UD, Legal, FA) $86,011 
Amount Financed $2,750,000 
Term (yrs) 30 
Avg Rate 4.450% 
--I--- RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMER HISTORY -------I- 

1998 # Customers 11,166 
1998 # Customers 13,506 
1998 # Gallons Sold ;.587,231,177 

% Customer Growth 20.96% 
Average Monthly Usage (gallons) 7,745 

Cost of Water I 1,000 gallons $2.65 

Administrative & Servicing Cost $.75/1,000 gallons 

IDFLOW - MODERATE GROWTH 
__I-__----_ VARIABLES - RESIDENTIAL RATES -- 

Expected #of  New Customers 406 

Annual % Customer Growth 
Avg monthly usage per Customer (gallons) 
Customer tarriff increase expected by BCWD 
Monthly Surcharge Proposed, if any 

$Q.OQ% 
6,000 

$25.00 

1st 10 years; thereafter @ 2.5%/yr 

Avg Customer 
Current BCWD Monthly Bill 

First 3,000 Gallons (Minimum) $15.45 $15.45 

Next 2,000 Gallons’ $4.65 $9.30 
Next 5,000 Gallons’ $4.40 $4.40 
Over 10,000 Gallons’ $3.65 
Avg Customer Assessment & Surcharge 
Avg Customer Monthiy Bill $29.15 $54.15 

-Paid to Boone County WD - Net Annual Surplus I+) 
Less Cost Less O&M Available to Payrnenfs Shorffall f-) Curnula five 

Number Tap on Fee Avg Annual Total 
Operating Of Assessment Cusfomer Customer 5illing Revenue 

Year Customers Revenue Monfhly Bill Revenue Receipts of Wafer Fees Service Debt  ona as Flows Flow 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 
2012 
2013 
2014 
201 5 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 
2030 
2031 
2032 
2033 
2035 

244 
268 
295 
324 
357 
392 
432 
475 
522 
574 
589 
603 
619 
634 
650 
666 
683 
700 
717 
735 
754 
772 
792 
812 
832 
853 
874 
896 
918 

$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 
$54.15 

$158,291 $158,291 
$174,120 $174,120 
$191,532 $191,532 
$210,686 $210.686 
$231,754 $231,754 
$254,930 $254,930 
$280,423 $280,423 
$308,465 $308,465 
$339,311 $339,311 
$373,243 $373,243 
$382,574 $382,574 
$392.138 $392,138 
$401,941 $401,941 
$41 1,990 $41 1,990 
$422,290 $422,290 
$432.847 $432.847 
$443.668 $443,668 

I $454,760 $454.760 
$466,129 $466,129 
$477.782 $477,782 
$489,727 $489,727 
$501.970 $501,970 
$514,519 $514.519 
$527,382 $527,382 
$540,567 $540,567 
$554,081 $554.081 
$567,933 $567.933 
$582,131 $582,131 
$596,684 $596,684 

$46,479 
$51 I 127 
$56.239 
$61,863 
$68,050 

$82,340 
$90,574 
$99,632 
$109,595 
$112,335 
$1 15,143 

$120,972 
$123,996 
$127.096 
$130,274 
$133,531 
$136,869 
$140,291 
$143.798 
$147.393 
$151,078 

$158,726 
$162,694 
$166,761 
$170,930 
$175.204 

$74,855 

$118,022 

$154,855 

$13,154 
$14,470 
$15.917 
$17,509 
$19,259 
$21,185 
$23,304 
$25,634 
$28,198 
$31,017 
$31.793 
$32,588 
$33,402 
$34.237 
$35,093 
$35,971 
$36,870 
$37,792 
$38.736 
$39,705 
$40,697 
$41.715 
$42.758 
$43,827 
$44,922 
$46,045 
$47,197 
$48.377 
$49,586 

$98.658 
$108,524 
$1 19,376 
$131,314 
$144,445 
$158,890 
$174,779 
$192,257 
$21 1,482 
$232,630 
$238.446 
$244,407 
$250,518 
$256,780 
$263,200 
$269,780 
$276,524 
$283,438 
$290,523 
$297.787 
$305,231 
$312,862 
$320.684 
$328,701 
$336,918 
$345,341 
$353.975 
$362,824 
$371,895 

$173,703 
$170,213 
$168,623 
$171,940 
$170,002 
$167,962 
$170.832 
$168,440 
$170,990 
$168,288 
$170,530 
$167,522 
$169,470 
$171,166 
$172,604 
$168,779 
$169.900 
$170,758 
$171,348 
$1 71,665 
$171,737 
$171,551 
$171,103 
$170,390 
$169.410 
$168,133 
$171,623 
$169.648 

$98.658 
($63,185) 
($50,836) 
($37,309) 
($27,495) 
($11,112) 

$6,817 
$21,425 
$43,042 
$61,641 
$70,159 
$73,878 
$82,996 
$87,311 
$92,034 
$97,176 
$107,745 
$113,538 
$119,765 
$126,439 
$133,566 
$141,125 
$149.133 
$157.598 
$166,528 
$175,931 
$185,842 
$131,202 
$202,247 

$98,658 ’ 
$35,473 

($15,363) 
($52.672) 
($80,167) 
($91,279) 
($84,463) 
($63,038) 
($19,9W 
$41.645 
$111,804 
$185,681 
$268,677 
$355,988 
$448,022 
$545,198 
$652,944 
$766,481 
$886,247 

$1,012,685 
$1,146,252 
$1,287,377 
$1,436,510 
$7,594.108 
$1,760,636 
$1,936,567 
$2,122,403 
$2,313,611 
$2,515,858 

2036 941 $54.15 $611,601 $611,601 $179,584 $50,826 $381,192 $167,440 $213,752 $2,729,610 
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BOONE COUNTY WATER SUBDISTRICT B (PHASE Ill) 
PROJECTED REVENUE FUND FLOW - HIGH GROWTH 

VARIABLES - RESlDENTlAL RATES ----- --__-_- 
Bond Sizing: 

'Total Project Costs $3,548,148 
Less Grant Funds ($1,000,000] 
Add Capitalized Interest $115,841 
Add COI (UD, Legal, FA) $86,011 
Amount Financed $2,750,000 
Term (yrs) 

RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMER HISTORY -------------- 
1998 #Customers 11,166 
1998 #Customers 13,506 
1998 #Gallons Sold 1,567,231,177 

% Customer Growth 20.96% 

Administrative & Servicin Cost $.75/1,000 allons 

Expected # of New Customers 
Annual % Customer Growth 
Avg monthly usage per Customer (gallons) 
Customer tarriff increase expected by BCWD 
Monthly Surcharge Proposed, if any 

First 3,000 Gallons (Minimum) 

Next 2,000 Gallons' 
Next 5,000 Gallons' 
Over 10,000 Gallons' 
Avg Customer Assessment & Surcharge 
Avg Customer Monthly Bill 

406 

15.00% 
6.000 

1st 10 years; thereafter @ 2.5%/yr 

$25.00 
Avg Customer 

Cunent BCWD Monthly Bill 
$15.45 $15.45 
$4.65 $9.30 

$4.40 $4.40 
$3.65 

$29.15 $54.15 

t 
Annual Tooral -- Paid to b o n e  County WD - Nef Annual Surplus (+J Number Tap on Fee Avg 

Operaling of Assessmenf Customer Cuslomer flifliflg Revenue Less Cost Less O&M Avaifable to Payments Shortfall (-J Curnulafive 
Year C u s f om em Revenue Monfhly Bill Revenue Recefpls of Wafer Fees Service Debt Bonds Flows Flow 

2006 244 $54.15 $158,291 $158,291 $46,479 $13,154 $98,658 $98,658 $98.658 , 
2007 280 $54.15 $182,035 $182,035 $53,451 $15,128 $113,457 $171,709 ($58,252) $40,406 

2009 370 $54.15 $240,741 $240,741 $70,689 $20,006 $150,046 $168,623 (518,577) (517,908) 
2010 426 $54.15 $276,852 $276,852 $81,292 $23,007 $172,553 $171,940 $613 ($17,294) 
201 1 490 $54.15 $318,380 $318,380 $93,486 $26,458 $198,436 $170,002 $28,434 $11,140 
2012 563 $54.15 $366,137 $366,137 $107.508 $30,427 $228,202 $1 67,962 $60,240 $71,380 
2013 648 $54.15 $421,058 $421,058 $123,635 $34,991 $262,432 $170,832 $91,600 $162,981 
2014 745 $54.15 $484,217 $484,217 $142,180 $40,240 $301.797 $168,440 $133,357 $296,338 
2015 857 $54.15 $556,849 $556,849 $163.507 $46,276 $347,067 $170.990 $176,077 $472,415 
2016 878 $54.15 $570,770 $570.770 $167,595 $47,432 $355,743 $168,288 $187,456 $659.87? 

2078 923 $51.15 $599,666 $599,666 $176,079 $49,834 $373,753 $167.522 $206,231 51,060,209 
$1,273,836 2019 946 $54.15 $614,657 $614,657 $180,481 $51,080 $383,097 $169,470 $213,627 

2020 970 $54.15 $630,024 $630,024 $184,993 $52,357 $392,674 $171,166 $221,509 $1,495,344 
2021 994 $54.15 $645,774 $645,774 $189,618 $53,665 $402,491 $172,604 $229.887 $1,725,231 
2022 1,019 $54.15 $661,919 $661,919 $194,358 855,007 $412,553 $168,779 $243,774 51,969,005 
2023 1,044 $54.15 $678,467 $678,467 $199,217 $56,382 $422,867 $169,900 $252,967 $2,221,972 
2024 1,070 $54.15 $695,428 $695,428 $204,198 $57,792 $433,439 $170,758 $262,681 $2,484,653 
2025 1,097 $54.15 $712,814 $712,814 $209,303 $59.237 $444,275 $171,348 $272,927 $2,757,580 
2026 1,124 $54.15 $730,634 $730,634 $214,535 $60,718 $455,382 $171,665 $283.717 53,041,296 
2027 1.153 $54.15 $748,900 $748,900 $219,899 $62,235 $466,766 $171,737 $295,029 $3,336,325 
2028 1,181 $54.15 $767,623 $767,623 $225,396 $63.791 $478.435 $171,551 $306,885 53,643,210 
2029 1,211 $54.15 $786,813 $786,813 $231,031 $65,386 $490,396 $171,103 $319,294 $3,962,504 
2030 1,241 $54.15 $806,484 $806,484 $236,807 $67,021 $502,656 $170,390 $332,266 $4,294,770 
2031 1,272 $54.15 $826.646 $826,646 $242,727 $68,696 $515,222 $169,410 $345,812 $4,640,582 
2032 1,304 $54.15 $847,312 $847,312 $248,795 $70,414 $528,103 $168,133 $359,970 85,000,552 
2033 1,337 $54.15 $868,495 $868,495 $255,015 $72.174 $541,306 $171,623 $369,683 55,370,235 
2035 1,370 $54.15 $890,207 $890,207 $261,390 $73,978 8554,838 $169.648 8385,191 $5,755,426 
2036 1,404 $54.15 $912,462 $912,462 $267,925 $75,828 $568.709 $167,440 $401,269 $6,156,695 

2008 322 $54.15 $209,340 $209,340 $61,468 $17,397 $130,475 $170,213 ($39,737) $669 

2017 900 $54.15 $585,040 $585,040 $171,784 $48,618 $364,637 $170,530 $194.107 $853,978 
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County o f  Boone, Kentucky General Obligation Water Revenue 
Bonds (Projected) 

Based on A/E Numbers dated 2/4/05 

Debt Service Schedule 
______________--_---- _______________--_--- 
______________------- ________________----- 

12/ I/ 5 
6/ I/ 6 
12/ 1/ 6 
6/ I/ 7 
12/ I/ 7 
6/ 11 a 
121 I/ a 
6/ I /  9 
12/ I/ 9 
6/ 1/10 
12/ 1/10 
6/ 1/11 
12/ 1/11 
6/ 1/12 
12/ 1/12 
6/ 1/13 

12/ 1/13 
6/ 1/14 
12/ 1/14 
6/ 1/15 
12/ 1/15 
6/ 1/16 
12/ 1/16 
6/ 1/17 
12/ 1/17 
61 1/18 
121 1/18 
6/ 1/19 
12/ 1/19 
6/ 2/20 
12/ 1/20 
6/ 1/21 
12/ 1/21 
6/ 1/22 
12/ 1/22 
6/ 1/23 
121 1/23 
6/ 1/24 

55,000 .OO 

55,000.00 

55,000.00 

60,000.00 

60,000.00 

60,000.00 

65,000.00 

65,000.00 

70,000.00 

70,000.00 

75,000.00 

75,000.00 

ao,ooo.oo 
85, ooo.oo 
90,000.00 

'90,000.00 

95,000.00 

100,000.00 

2.720000 

2 .a90000 

3.060000 

3.230000 

3.400000 

3.550000 

3. 6aoooo 

3.770000 

3.860000 

3.940000 

4.01 0000 

4 .070000 

4.130000 

4.190000 

4.250000 

4.310000 

4 -360000 

4.410000 

58,354 -25 
58,354.25 

58,354.25 

56,a11.50 
56,812.50 

58,354.25 

57,606.25 
57,606.25 

55,970 .OO 
55,970.00 
55,001 -00 
55,001.00 
53,981.00 
53,981 .oo 
52,916.00 
52,916.00 
51,720.00 
51,720.00 
50,494 -75 
50,494.75 
49,143.75 

47,764.75 
47,764 -75 
46,261 .OO 
46,261 -00 

49,143 -75 

44,734.75 
44,734.75 
43,082.75 
43,082.75 

39,389.50 
39,389.50 

41,302.00 
41,30ii.O0 

37,450.00 
37,450.00 
35,379.00 
35,379.00 

Ross SinClaire - T. Ross 

Date: 03-21-2005 10:04:53 Filename: BOONE 

58,354.25 
58,354.25 
58,354 -25 
113,354.25 
57,606.25 
112,606.25 
56,81? -50 

55,970.00 
115,970.00 
55,001 .OO 
115,001.00 

iii,811.50 

53,981.00 
113,9ai.00 

51,720.00 

52,916.00 
117,916.00 

116,720.00 
50,494.75 
120,494.75 
49,143.75 
119,143.75 
47,764.75 
122,764 -75 
46,261 .OO 
121,261.00 

124,734.75 
44,734.75 

43,082.75 
128,082.75 

39,389.50 

41,302.00 
13̂ 1,302.00 

?29,389.50 
37,450.00 
132,450.00 
35,379.00 
135,379.00 

Key: PHASE1 I I 

116,70a.50 

171,708.50 

170,212.50 

168,623.00 

171,940.00 

170,002.00 

167,962.00 

170~a32.00 

168,440.00 

I 70,989.50 

r68, 287.50 

2 70,529.50 

167,522.00 

169,469.50 

171,165.50 

172,604.00 

168 , 779. oo 

169,900.00 

170,758.00 



12/ 1/24 
6/ 1/25 

12/ 1/25 
6/ 1/26 

12/ 1/26 
6/ 1/27 

12/ 1/27 
6/ 1/28 

12/ 1/28 
6/ 1/29 

12/ 1/29 
6/ 1/30 

12/ 1/30 
6/ 1/31 

12/ 1/31 
6/ 1/32 

12/ 1/32 
6 f  1/33 

12f 1/33 
6/ 1/34 

12/ 1/34 
6/ 1/35 

County of Boone, Kentucky General Obligation Water Revenue 
Bonds (Projected) 

Based on AfE Numbers dated 2/41/05 

Debt Service Schedule 
_____________-_------ 
----_-_-_-------^---- 

__________-__-__----- ..................... 

105,000.00 

110,000.00 

115,000.00 

120,000.00 

125,000.00 

130,000.00 

135,000.00 

140,000.00 

150,000.00 

155,000.00 

160,000.00 

4.460000 

4.480000 

4.510000 

4.540000 

4.570000 

4.600000 

4.650000 

4.650000 

4.650000 

4.650000 

4.650000 

33 , 174.00 
33,174.00 
30,832.50 
30,832 - 50 
28,368.50 
28,368.50 

25 , 775.25 
23,053.25 
23,051 -25 
20,195.00 
20,-195.00 

17,205 -00 
14,066.25 
14,066.25 
10,811.25 
10,811.25 
7,323.75 
7,323 -75 
3,720.00 
3,720.00 

25,775 -25 

17,205 .oa 

33 , 174.00 
138,174 .OO 

140,832.50 

143,368.50 
25,775 -25 

145,775.25 
23,051.25 

148,051.25 
20,195 -00 

150,195.00 
17,205 .OO 

152,205.00 
14,066.25 

154,066.25 
10,811.25 

160,811.25 
7,323.75 

162,323.75 
3,720.00 

163,720.00 

30,832.50 

28,36a.50 

Dated 6/ I /  5 uith Delivery o f  6/ I /  5 
Bond Years 51,735 .OOO 
Average Coupon 4.446658 
Average Life 18.812727 
N I C  % 4.552969 % Using 98.0000000 
T I C  % 4.575779 % From Delivery Date 
Arbitrage Y ielb 4.40823a % 

Ross Sinclaire - T. Ross 

171,348.00 

171,665.00 

171,737.00 

171,550.50 

171,102.50 

170,390 .OO 

169,410.00 

168,132.50 

271,622.50 

169,647.50 

167,440.00 

Date: 03-21-2005 6l 10:04:53 Filename: BOONE Key: PHASEIII 



Period 
Ending 

12/ I /  5 
6/ I /  6 

12/ I /  6 
61 I /  7 

12/ I /  7 
6/ I /  8 

12/ I /  8 
61 11 9 

121 I /  9 
6/ 1/10 

12f 1/10 
6/ 1/11 

12/ 1/11 
61 ? / I2  

12/ 1/12 
6 /  1/13 

12/ 1/13 
6/ 1/14 

12/ 1/14 
6/ 1/15 

12/ 1/15 
6/ 1/16 

12/ 1/16 
6/ 1/17 

12/ 1/17 
6/ 1/18 

12/ 1/18 
6/ 1/19 

12/ 1/19 
6/ 1/20 

12/ 1/20 
6/ 1/21 

12/ 1/21 
6/ 7/22 

12/ 1/22 
6/ 1/23 

!2/ 1/23 
6 /  7/24 

- -  -----.. 
Constr. Fund Debt Svc. Res. Net Surplus Funds Total 

Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Earnings + Cap. Int. Debt Service Remaining _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - - - -  _ _ _ _ _ _ - - - - - - - -  - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

55,000.00 

55,000.00 

55,000.00 

60,000.00 

60,000.00 

60,000.00 

65,000.00 

65,000.00 

70,000.00 

70,000.00 

75,000.00 

75,000.00 

80,000.00 

85,000.00 

90,000.00 

90,000 -00 

95,000.00 

100,000.00 

Ross Sinctaire - T. Ross 

2.720000 

2.890000 

3.060000 

3.230000 

3.400000 

3.550000 

3.680000 

3.770000 

3 .a60000 

3.940000 

4.010000 

4.070000 

4.130000 

4.T90000 

4.250000 

4.310000 

4.360000 

4.41 0000 

58,354.25 
58,354.25 
58,354.25 
58,354.25 
57,606 -25 
57,606.25 
56,811 -50 
56,813 -50 
55,970.00 
55,970.00 
55,001.00 
55,001 -00 
53,981 .OO 
53,981.00 
52,916.00 
52,916.00 
51,720.00 
51,720.00 
50,494.75 
50,494 -75 
49,143.75 
49,143.75 
47,764.75 
47,764.75 
46,261 .OO 
46,261 .OO 
44,734.75 
44,734.75 
43,082.75 
43,082.75 
41,302.00 
41,302.00 
39,389.50 
39,389.50 
37,450.00 
37,450.00 
35,379.00 
35,379.00 

Date: 03-21-2005 a 10:04:53 Filename: BOONE 

58,354.25 
58,354.25 
58,354.25 

113,354.25 
57,606.25 

112,606.25 
56,811.50 

111,811.50 
55 , 970.00 

115,970.00 
55,001 -00 

115,001.00 
53,981.00 

113,981.00 
52,916.00 

117,916.00 
51,720.00 

116,720.00 
50,494 -75 

120,494.75 
49,143.75 

179,143.75 
47,764.75 

122,764.75 
46,261.00 

121,261.00 
44,734.75 

124,734 -75 
43,082.75 

128,082.75 
4?,302.00 

131,302.00 
39,389.50 

37,450.00 
132,450.00 
35,379.00 

135,379.00 

129,3a9.50 

Key: PHASE111 

116,418.9? 58,064.66 

58,354 -24 
113,354.25 
57,606.25 

112,606.25 
56,811.50 

111,811.50 
55,970 -00 

115,970.00 
55,001 .OO 

115,001.00 
53,981 -00 

113,981.00 
52,916.00 

1?7,916.00 
51,720.00 

116,720.00 
50,494.75 

120,494.75 
49,143.75 

1 19,143.75 
47,764.75 

122,764.75 
46,261.00 

121,261.00 

124,734.75 
43,082.75 

128,082.75 
41,302.00 

131,302.00 
39,389.50 

129,389.50 
37,450 .OO 

232,450.00 
35,379.00 

135,379.00 

289.60 0.01 

44,734.75 



Period 
Endi ng 

12/ 1/24 

12/ 1/25 

l2/ 1/26 

12/ 1/27 

12/ 1/28 

12/ 1/29 

12/ 1/30 

'i2/ 1/31 

12/ 1/32 

12/ 1/33 

12/ 1/34 

Pr i nci pa 1 
- - - - - - - -  - - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  

6/ 1/25 105,000.00 

6/ 1/26 110,000.00 

6/ 1/27 115,000.00 

6 /  1/28 120,000.00 

6/ 1/29 125,000.00 

6/ 1/30 130,000.00 

6/ 1/31 135,000.00 

6/ 1/32 140,000.00 

6/ 1/33 150,000.00 

6/ 1/34 155,000.00 

6/ 1/35 160,000.00 

2,750,000.00 
- - _ _ _ - - - _ - _ _ _ _  
-------------- ---_--__--_-__ 

County o f  Boone, Kentucky GeneFaL Obligation Water Revenue 
Bonds (Projected) 

Based on A/E Numbers dated 2/4/05 

Net Debt Service Requirements 

Delivery Date: 6/ I/ 5 

____________________--------- ............................. 
............................. ............................. 

Total Constr. Fund Debt Svc. Res. Net Surplus Funds 
Coupon Interest Debt Service Earnings + Cap. Int. Debt Service Remaining 

33,174 -00 33,174.00 33,174.00 
4.460000 33,174.00 138,174.00 138,174.00 

30,832.50 30,832.50 30,832.50 
4.480000 30,832.50 140,832.50 140,832.50 

28,368.50 28,368.50 28,368.50 
4.510000 28,368.50 143,368.50 143,368.50 

25,775.25 25 , 775.25 25 , 775.25 
4.540000 25 I 775 -25 145 I 7'75 2 5  145,775.25 

23,051.25 23,051.25 23,051.25 
4.570000 23,051.25 148,051.25 148,051.25 

20,195.00 20,195.00 20,195.00 
4.600000 20,195.00 150,195.00 150,195.00 

17,205 - 00 17,205 .OO 17,205 .OO 
4.650000 17,205.00 152,205.00 152,205.00 

14,066.25 14,066.25 14,066.25 
4.650000 14,066.25 154,066.25 754,066.25 

10,811.25 10,811.25 10,811.25 
4.650000 10,811.25 160,811.25 160,811.25 

7,323.75 7,323.75 7,323.75 
4.650000 7,323.75 162,323.75 162,323.75 

3,720 .OO 3 , 720.00 3,720.00 
4.650000 3,720.00 163,720.00 163,720.00 

2,300,478.50 5,050,478.50 116,708.5 I 4,933 , 769.99 

- - - - - - - - - -  _ - - - - - - - - - - - - -  _ _ _ _ _ _ - - _ _ _ _ _ _  - _ _ _ - - - - - _ - - - -  _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ - - _ _ - -  - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  - - - * - - - - - - - - - -  

- - - - - - - - - - - - - -  _ _ _ _ - - - - _ _ _ _ _ _  - _ _ _ - _ - - - _ _ _ _ -  _ - _ _ _ - _ - - - _ _ - -  - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
-------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -------------- -____----___-- --_____---__-- -------------- 

Ross Sinclaire - T. Ross 

Date: 03-21-2005 El 10:04:53 Filename: BOONE Key: PHASE111 
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Dated 6/ 1/ 5 with Delivery of 6/ 1/ 5 
Bond Years 51,735.000 
Average Coupon 4.446658 
Average L i f e  18.812727 
N I C  % 4.552969 % Using 98.0DOOOOO 
T I C  % 4.575779 % From Delivery Date 
Arbitrage Yield 4.408238 % 

Ross Sinclaire - T. Ross 

Date: 03-21-2005 ZI 10:04:53 Filename: BOONE Key: PHASEIlI 

12 



KO. Box 398 

FranlSfart, KY 
40602 

502 I69 5-73 53 
fax: 5021695-2897 

www.tsamirni.cdm 

March 21,2005 

INVESTMENT 

%ANKING 

29201 

VIA UPS Delivery 
Mr. Jim Parson 
Boone County Administration Building 
2950 Washington Square 
Burlington, KY 41 005 

RE: Phase I l l  - Rural Water District Expansion Project 

Dear Jim: 

Enclosed herewith are three scenarios as to the projected cash flows and the annual bond 
subsidy payment, if any, requirement of the County in order to finance the Phase 111 project based 
upon the engineers estimates dated February 4, 2005. Please note on page seven (7) of the 
schedules that I offset the total amount of Bonds to be issued by the $1,000,000 grant. I figured 
everything as a traditional bond issue, but if KIA does fund the project, assume that the rate that 
I have used would be high in comparison to their rate. I have also included a capitalized interest 
account to pay the debt service for one year during the construction of the lines. 

Using these assumptions, the total bonds to be issued would be $2,750,000. Page one (1) 
and two (2) are the projections using a 5% growth figure for low growth, a 10% growth figure for 
moderate growth and 15% growth representing a I&& rate. Please note that the growth rates are 
only during the first 10 years, and thereafter were ran at 2.5% per year. Using the existing 
customer rates of the Boone County Water District and adding $25.00 as a surcharge, you can see 
the maximum liability under any of the scenarios to the County is about $65,000-$70,000 per year 
and the customer break even point is about 430 customers. I started with 60% of the 406 customers 
as you indicated I should use in your email. 

If you have any questions of the schedules or need hrther numbers ran, please feel free 
to contact me. Please be advised that we would be glad to serve as the financial advisor of a 
traditional bond issue or to simply monitor and make sure that the KIA loan funding is 
economically better for the County. 

Yours truly, 

Terrell Ross L h  

TRklr 
Enclosures 

U 

z ... 



EXHIBIT G 

CURRENT FINANCIAL AUDIT OF THE COUNTY 
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FlNANClAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 



BOONE COUNTY 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

PAGE -- 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

Boone  County Officials 

Management ’s  Discussion and  Analysis (MD&A) 

S ta t emen t  of Net Asse t s  - Modified Cash  Basis 

S ta tement  of Activities - Modified C a s h  Basis 

Balance  S h e e t  - Governmental Funds  - Modified C a s h  Basis 

Reconciliation of the Balance S h e e t  - Governmental Funds  to the  
S ta tement  of Net Asse t s  - Modified C a s h  Basis 

S ta tement  of Revenues ,  Expenditures and  C h a n g e s  in Fund Balances  -- 
Governmental Funds  - Modified Cash  Basis 

Reconciliation of the S ta tement  of Revenues ,  Expenditures and  C h a n g e s  in 
Fund Balances -Governmental  Funds  to the  S ta tement  of 
Activities - Modified C a s h  Bas is  

S t a t emen t  of Net Asse ts  - Proprietary Funds  

S ta t emen t  of Revenues ,  Expenses  and  C h a n g e s  in Net Asse t s  - 
Proprietary Funds  

S ta t emen t  of C a s h  Flows - Proprietary Funds  

S ta t emen t  of Fiduciary Net Asse ts  - Fiduciary Funds  

S ta t emen t  of C h a n g e s  in Fiduciary Net Asse ts  - Fiduciary Funds  

Notes to the  Financial S ta tements  

Required Supplemental  Information 

S ta t emen t  of Revenues ,  Expenditures and  C h a n g e s  in Fund Balance - 
Budget and Actual - 

General Fund 
Road and  Bridge Fund 
Jail Fund 
School Board Tax  Fund 
Public Safety Fund 

Condition Rating of the  County’s S t ree t  Sys tem 

Supplemental  Information 

1 

2 - 9  

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 - 36 

37 
38 
39 
40 
41 

42 

Combining Balance S h e e t  - Non-major Governmental Funds  43 



BOONE COUNTY 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

(Continued) 

PAGE 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Non-major Governmental Funds 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over 
Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial 
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditina Standards 

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each 
Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in 
Accordance with OMB Circular A-I33 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Schedule of Status of Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs 

44 

45 

46 

47 

48 - 49 

50 

51 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the People of Kentucky 
Honorable Ernie Fletcher, Governor 
Robbie Rudolph, Secretary, Finance and Administration Cabinet 
Honorable Gary W. Moore, Boone County Judge/Executive 
Members of t h e  Boone County Fiscal Court 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the  aggregate discretely presented component unit and remaining fund 
information of Boane County, Kentucky, as  of and for the  year ended June 30, 2003, which collectively 
comprise the  County's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the County's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions 
on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We did not audit the financial statements of the Boone County Assisted Housing Department, a major 
enterprise fund, and the Boone County Public Safety Communications Center, the discretely presented 
component unit. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has 
been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as  it relates to the amounts included for the Boone County 
Assisted Housing Department and Boone County Public Safety Communications Center are based on the 
reports of the other auditors. 

The Boone County Assisted Housing Department represents 9.6 percent, and 62.3 percent, respectively, 
of the  assets, and revenues of the of the business-type activities opinion unit. The Boone County Public 
Safety Communications Center represents 1.9 percent and .4 percent, respectively, of the assets, and 
revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component unit and remaining fund information opinion 
unit 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in t h e  United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as  evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions 

Management of the Boone County Fiscal Court has adopted the modified cash basis of accounting, as 
described in Note 1, to present the financial statements of the governmental activities, certain business- 
type activities, major governmental funds; General Fund, Road and Bridge Fund, Jail Fund, School Board 
Tax Fund, Public Safety Fund, and Capital Improvements Fund, one of the major enterprise funds, Jail 
Canteen Fund, and the aggregated non-major governmental funds while management of the Boone 
County Assisted Housing Department and Boone County Public Properties Corporation Golf Course, two 
major enterprise funds, and Boone County Pubic Safety Communications Center, a discretely presented 
component unit, have adopted the  accrual basis of accounting. The financial statements, because of the 
two different bases of accounting presented, include certain accruals required by accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America that are not required by the  modified cash basis of 
accounting The amounts by which these accruals would affect the financial statements are not 
reasonably determinable 

. . .  . .- ... . - . ... . . . - 
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To the People of Kentucky 
Honorable Ernie Fletcher, Governor 
Robbie Rudolph, Secretary, Finance and Administration Cabinet 
Honorable Gary W. Moore, Boone County JudgelExecutive 
Members of the Boone County Fiscal Court 

Page 2 

In our opinion, based on our report and the report of other auditors, except for the effects, if any, of the 
matters described in the preceding paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in 
all material respects, the respective financial position as of June 30, 2003, and the respective changes in 
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with the 
modified cash basis of accounting as described in Note 1 

The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison schedules on pages 2 through 9 
and 37 through 41 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary 
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as 
applicable to the modified cash basis of accounting. We have applied certain limited procedures, which 
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and 
presentation of the required supplementary information However, we did not audit the information and 
express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that callectively 
comprise the Boone County, Kentucky’s basic financial statements The combining and individual non- 
major fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required 
part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements 
have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, 
in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken 
as  a whole. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 8, 
2004, on our consideration of Boone County, Kentucky’s internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditina Standards and should 
be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit. 

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements of Boone 
County taken as  a whole The accompanying financial information listed as  supporting schedules in the 
table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial 
statements of Boone County. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis as  required by 1J.S. Office of Management and Budget 
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Orqanizationg and is not a required 
part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the financial statements and, in our opinion, based on 
our audit and the report of the other auditors, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 
financial statements taken as a whole. 

Fort Mitchell, Kentucky 
January 8,2004 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Our management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) of Boone County's financial performance provides 
this narrative overview and analysis of the County's financial activities for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2003. Please read it in conjunction with the County's financial statements that begin on page 7 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Boone County has net assets of $162,302,459 as of June 30, 2003. This is a very large increase 
from our prior year's Statement of Net Assets due to the new reporting model under GASB Statement 
#34, which allows Counties to include all capital assets including infrastructure. 

Total expenses in governmental activities of $46,522,'733 for the year were offset by program 
revenues in the amount of $22,867,553, nearly 50% Program revenues are grants, contributions or 
charges for services that the County is collecting in order to compensate using tax revenue 

Baone County's total indebtedness at the close of the fiscal year was $67,275,155, in which 
$3,760,932 is short term (to be paid in full within one year). One debt addition in FY03 was 
$5,750,000 in water line expansion bonds. 

The County's general fund transferred $30,073,064 in cash and construction funds to the Capital 
Improvements Fund to keep large capital expenditures separate from the general operating funds 

The County expended more than $16,000,000 on capital projects, including parks, roads, buildings, 
water expansion, land and land improvements. 

Facilitated the opening, expansion or purchase of six parks, England-ldlewild Park, Gunpowder Creek 
Nature Park, Conrad Park, Union Pool and Park, Verona Park and a YMCA - Parks joint venture. 

The County contributed $500,000 to the City of Florence for the upgrades to Dream Street and 
$498,000 for the construction of the FlorencelBoone County Skate Park. 

Two new road projects began and are in progress of being built; Florence-Hopeful Church Road 
Connector and Conrad Lane Expansion Also, preliminary engineering studies are being performed 
for Industrial Road Improvements. 

Three building projects began construction with nearly $6.8 million in expenditures; Public Safety 
Complex and Jail facility, Old Courthouse renovations, and an Educational Facility at Maplewood. 

Water line expansions throughout rural Boone County began and will continue through FY04. A total 
of $3,260,271 was expended in Fiscal Year 2003. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The MD&A serves as an introduction to the County's basic financial statements, which consists of two 
government-wide financial statements and various fund financial statements The County's Financial 
Statements and components are listed below with an explanation for each: 
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements consist of a statement of net assets and a statement of 
activities. The financial statements include all activities for which the Boone County Fiscal Court is 
fiscally responsible. These activities, defined as the County’s reporting entity, are operated within 
separate legal entities that make up the primary government and another separate legal entity that is 
included as a discretely presented component unit 

T’he primary government includes the following legal entities 

Boone County Fiscal Court, including Boone County Assisted Housing 
Boone County Public Properties Corporation, including Boone County Public Golf 

Courses 

The discretely presented component unit presentation includes the following legal entity: 

Boone County Public Safety Communication Center 

The financial information of the County “as a whole“ is reported in the two government-wide financial 
statements (pages 10 and 11). One of the most important questions to ask is whether the County is 
in better financial shape as a result of the year’s activities. The two government wide financial 
statements will help answer this question. These two statements report the County’s net assets and 
changes in them. You can think of the County’s net assets - the difference between assets and 
liabilities - as one way to measure the County’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, 
increases or decreases in the County’s net assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is 
improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other non-financial factors, however, such as 
changes in the County’s property tax base and the condition of the roads and other infrastructure, to 
assess the overall health of the County. 

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide the County into three kinds 
of activities: governmental, business-type and component units. 

Governmental Activities - Most of the County’s basic services are reported here, including 
police protection, roads and public works, parks, jail, emergency management, water 
rescue, building inspections, animal control, human services and Maplewood Children’s 
Home. Also included is the general administration of the County, all capital projects and 
mental health, mental retardation and aging programs. These programs and services are 
basically funded through real and personal property taxes, payroll taxes, charges for 
services and federalktate grants. These programs resulted in an increase in net assets 
of approximately $3,500,000. 

Business-Type Activities - The County has three business-type funds, which are the jail 
canteen, assisted housing and golf course fund. Each of these funds charges a fee to 
customers to help cover the cost of these services. The decrease in net assets is due to 
the net loss generated by the Golf Course. 

Component 1Jnit Activities - Although the Public Safety Communications Center (PSCC) 
is a separate legal entity, the financial statements include its activities since the County is 
financially accountable. PSCC is governed by a separate Board appointed by County 
and City officials. Boone County funds the operations of this entity at 75% and the capital 
at 100%. 
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements (pages 12 and 14) focus on the individual funds of the County's 
government. These fund financial statements report the County's operations in more detail than the 
governrnent-wide statements by providing information about the County's most significant funds. The 
nine funds deemed "major" are general, road and bridge, jail, school board tax, public safety, and 
capital improvements, jail canteen, assisted housing and golf course funds. 

0 Governmental funds are used to report most of the County's basic services. These funds 
focus on the revenues coming in and expenditures going out on a cash basis. These 
funds provide a short-term view of the County's operations. The County currently has 
seventeen governmental funds and adopts a budget for each. These funds provide the 
reader with information to help determine whether there are more or fewer financial 
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance County programs. We describe 
the difference between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets 
and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in reconciliation on pages 13 
and 15. 

0 Proprietary funds are used to report operations the County treats as business-type 
activities. The focus is to earn a profit or at least break-,even. The County charges either 
outside customers or other units of government for services reported in these funds. The 
County currently has three proprietary funds, Jail Canteen Fund, Assisted Housing Fund 
and Golf Course Fund. 

0 Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity or 
as an agent for another group or individual. Activities from these types of funds are not 
included in the government-wide financial statements because the County cannot use the 
assets from the funds in daily operations The County currently has two fiduciary funds; 
Jail Prisoners Cash Fund and Self Insurance Fund. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes to the financial statements (pages 21 through 36) provide expanded explanation about the 
government-wide and fund financial statements and are essential to the reader in obtaining a better 
understanding of the information provided within the financial statements. 

Required Supplementary Information 

The budgetary comparison schedules (pages 37 through 41) for the general fund and five major 
special revenue funds provide information that supplements the government-wide and fund financial 
statements. 

Other required information is the Condition Rating of the County's Road System. The Public Works 
Department is utilizing the modified approach method in valuing the County's maintained road 
system. The modified approach establishes a minimum condition level set for all Boone County 
maintained roads. The Public Works Department will maintain the necessary condition level through 
its Pavement Management Program which establishes a Pavement Quality Index (PQI) when the 
roads are analyzed (every 3 to 4 years) on a range from 2.0 to 10.0. The County has and will 
continue its commitment to preserve and maintain the road system at a level of at least 7.0 on all 
collector roads and 6.0 on other local roads. Using this approach, the roads will maintain the asset 
value of construction or historic cost, whichever is available, and will not depreciate each year. The 
dollar value of the road will not increase unless the level of service is improved. Each year the Public 
Works Department will be responsible for maintaining this condition level and the Fiscal Court will be 
responsible for budgeting annually the estimated amount to expend for maintaining all roads at that 
level. When a roadlstreet is scheduled to fall below the minimum PQI in a given fiscal year, the 
roadlstreet will be listed to be rehabilitated in that year and placed on the yearly paving list submitted 
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

to the Fiscal Court through the budget process. The PQI is upgraded upon rehabilitation. By doing 
this the Fiscal Court fulfills the requirements of the Modified Approach. 

Supplementary Information 

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (page 45) provides information required pursuant to 
the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-I 33 of all federal grant money received by 
the County 

The Combining Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances - Governmental Funds (pages 43 and 44) present the non-major governmental funds 

Basis of Accounting 

The County has elected to present financial information of the Governmental Funds on the modified 
cash basis of accounting, due to the requirements under the Kentucky Constitution. Under this basis 
of accounting, revenues and expenses and related assets and liabilities are recorded when they 
result from cash transactions, except for the recording of depreciation expense in the 
government-wide statement of activities. Furthermore, certain assets such as accounts receivable 
and certain liabilities such as accounts payable are not recorded in the financial statements. Readers 
should consider the limitations of this basis of accounting when reviewing the financial statements 

The financial information for the Proprietary Funds and the discretely presented component unit, is 
presented on the accrual basis of accounting 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY AS A WHOLE 

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement #34, the County is 
not required to restate prior periods for the purpose of providing comparative information. Fiscal Year 
2003 is the first year the financial statements are presented in the GASB Statement #34 formats, 
therefore a comparative analysis of government-wide information is not available. 

The following sections provide condensed financial information derived from the two government- 
wide financial statements. 

Current Assets 
Capital Assets 
Total Assets 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

Governmental Business 
Activities Activities Total 

$ 42.190.075 $ 553,540 $ 42.743.615 . .  
180,126,233 7,727,489 1871853,722 
222,316,308 8,281,029 230,597,337 

Current Debt 3,274,492 786.752 4,061,244 
Long-Term Debt _I_ 

Total Debt 

. .  
58,051,144 6,182,490 64 1233 [634 
61,325,636 6,969,242 68,294,878 

Net Assets: 
Invested in Capital Assets, 144,559,157 677,722 145,236,879 

Restricted 282,000 282,000 
Unrestricted ~ 16,431,515 352,065 16,783,580 

Total Net Assets $ 160,990,672 $ I ,311,787 $ 162,302,459 

Net of Related Debt 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY AS A WHOLE (Continued) 

At June 30, 2003, the County's assets exceeded its liabilities by $162,302,459 The majority of the 
County's assets (82%) are invested in capital assets which include land, buildings, infrastructure, 
equipment and vehicles These assets are listed in the net assets section as  "invested in capital 
assets, net of related debt". The unrestricted net asset amount of $16,783,580 represents the 
amount the County can use to operate on a day-to-day basis to provide basic services The 
restricted amount under business activities of $282,000 is Assisted Housing Reserve for renovations 
of their offices, which was set aside for a specific project per the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development. 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

Revenues: 

Program Revenues 
Charges for Services 
Operating Grants and Contributions 
Capital Grants and Contributions 

General Revenue" 
Taxes 
Excess Fees 
Investment Earnings 
Donated Capital Assets 
Other 

Total Revenues 

Expenses 
General Government 
Protection to Persons and Property 
General Health and Sanitation 
Social Services 
Recreation and Culture 
Roads 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 
Jail Canteen Fund 
Golf Course Fund 
Assisted Housing Fund 

Total Expenses 

Change in Net Assets 

Net Assets July 1, 2002 
Net Assets June 30,2003 

Governmental Business 
Activities Activities Total 

$ 6,453,052 $ 2,520,083 $ 8,973,135 
11,917,144 
4,497,357 

24,132,430 
685,596 
981,662 
670,527 
338,61 I 

49,676,379 

21,842,668 
8,285,196 
3,029,093 
1,655,034 
1,993,600 
7,225,364 
2,491,778 

46,522,733 

3,153,646 

4,181,895 

15,154 

- 

6,717,132 

- 
- 

- 

144,191 
2,731,535 
4.097.548 

16,099,039 
4 ~ 497,3 5'7 

24,132,430 
685,596 
996,816 
670,527 
338,611 

56,393,511 

21,842,668 
8,285,196 
3,029,093 
1,655,034 
1,993,600 
7,225,364 
2,491,778 

144,191 
2,731,535 
4.097.548 

6.973.274 53.496.007 

(256,142) 

1,567,929 

2,897,504 

159,404,955 157,837,026 
160,990,672 1,311,787 $ 162,302,459 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY AS A WHOLE (Continued) 

During Fiscal Year 2003, the net assets increased by $3,153,646 for governmental activities and 
decreased by $256,142 for the business-type. The business-type activities of the Jail Canteen and 
Assisted Housing both changed positively but the Golf Course loss for the year was $357,047. 

Program revenues for the governmental activities were 46% of total revenue received. This explains 
that 46% of the revenues collected went directly to funding specific programs and offset the amount 
of general revenue needed for these programs. General revenues consist of all taxes, excess fees, 
and investment earnings, which cannot be directly traced to a function 

General government and administration is the largest user of the general revenue category. This 
function includes most departments’ salaries and fringes, all contractual agreements, such as TANK 
and the Public Safety Communication Center, and debt service. Two other major users of general 
revenue are the protection to persons and property, which includes the Sheriffs Department, 
emergency management and building inspections and roads, which contains the maintenance, 
upgrades and new additions to the County’s road system, along with snow removal, storm sewer 
maintenance and the daily operations of the Public Works Department. The only function that looks 
to be self-supporting is the general health and sanitation function but this is due to the collection of 
the sewer surcharge as a charge for service although the expense is within the debt service 
payments. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY’S FUNDS 

Fund financial statements generally distinguish between major and non-major funds with major funds 
presented individually. The County has nine major funds; general, road and bridge, jail, school board 
tax, public safety, and capital improvements, jail canteen, assisted housing and golf course funds. 

The County’s governmental funds reflect a combined fund balance of $42,186,515, in which only 
$15,066,946 is unreserved to be used for day-to-day operations The fund financial statements for 
the governmental funds can be found on pages 12 and 14 The net change in fund balance for the 
general fund is -$31,885,850, the large negative amount is due to a general fund transfer of 
$30,073,064 to the capital improvements fund. This money included cash, investments and 
construction loan dollars The capital improvements fund was established to keep all capital project 
dollars separate and to better track the operational profitlloss of the general fund With the capital 
money removed from the general fund statement it shows a net change in fund balance of a negative 
$1,734,786 which better reflects the operations of this fund for Fiscal Year 2003 The general fund 
also transferred money to cover expenses for the road and bridge fund and the jail fund in the 
amounts of $4,000,000 and $300,000, respectively 

The County’s proprietary funds’ statements are shown on pages 16 through 18 with total net assets of 
$1,311,787. Fifty percent of the net assets are capital assets, net of related debt for the Golf Course. 
An unrestricted amount of $66,938 in the golf course fund and a total net operating loss of $357,047 
decreased the net assets for the golf course to $718,343. The jail canteen fund ended with $31,016 
and assisted housing’s fund net assets were $562,428. 

‘The County has two fiduciary funds, jail prisoners fund and self insurance fund, in which the 
statements are shown on pages 19 and 20. These monies are restricted and we exclude them from 
the other statements because the County cannot m e  these assets to finance operations The self 
insurance fund’s net assets at the end of the year were $697,893 and are reserved to pay health 
insurance claims for employees in the system 
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GENERAL BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

There were no amendments to Boone County's budget in Fiscal Year 2003 although the County 
made various line item transfers within the budget to increase certain line items while subsequently 
decreasing other line items, These types of transactions have no effect on the budget's bottom line. 
Throughout the year, revenues collected were over budget by $1,104,143 and operating expenses 
were below budget by $10,825,076 The one large unfavorable variance between final budget and 
actual was the operating transfer out to the Capital Improvements Fund. This amount of $30,073,064 
was reported as a negative revenue amount and therefore caused the large variance 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

At the end of Fiscal Year 2003, the County had $186,757,034 invested in a broad range of capital 
assets, including land, roads, park facilities, bridges, water lines, buildings, equipment and vehicles. 
As shown on the chart to follow, the amount represents a net increase (including additions and 
deductions) of over $19 million, or 12%, on the governmental activities and a decrease of $426,317, 
or 6%, on the business activities from the previous year The business activities are showing a 
decrease due to the Golf Course having a very limited capital budget for the past several years. 

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 

Governmental Activities 
Business Activities Fyo2 FY03 FY 02 a 
Land $ 5,245,529 
Roads, Modified Approach (Not Depr.) 130,154,432 
Other Infrastructure 129,130 
Land Improvements 1,475,132 
Building and Improvements 8,962,741 
Construction In Progress 9,615,131 
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment 2,187,724 
Other Equipment 3,269,063 

$ 8,019,655 $2,396,478 $ 2,396,478 
130,154,432 

122,148 
1,649,293 3,088,939 2,795,914 

22,089,723 1,330,797 1,255,747 
12,347,109 
2,736,873 239,985 173,591 
2,995,079 12,840 20,992 

$ 161,038,882 $ 180,114.312 $ 7,069.039 $ 6,642.722 

A more detailed breakdown of the capital assets and depreciation can be found in Note 5 of the Notes 
to the Financial Statements, page 29 and 30. The year brought about approximately $29 million in 
additional capital projects, including the completion of a state-funded Justice Center, construction in 
progress of over $12 million for Public Safety Complex and Jail facility, water lines to rural Boone 
County and an Educational Facility at Maplewood 

DEBT 

At June 30, 2003, the County had $67,275,155 in bonds and leases outstanding versus $64,749,868 
last year, an increase of 4% - as shown on the chart below. This increase is due to new general 
obligation debt issued during FY03 for phase 1 - rural waterline expansion project in the amount of 
$5,750,000 
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OUTSTANDING DEBT AT YEAR-END 

Governmental Activities Business Activities 
-- FY 02 FY03 -- FY 02 Fyo3 

General Obligation Bonds 

Revenue Bonds and Notes 
(Backed by the County) $ 31,077,963 $ 34,901,975 

(Backed by Specific Tax or 
Fee Revenues) 27,241,905 26,408,180 6,430,000 5,965,000 

$ 58.319:868 $ 61,310.154 $ 6,430.000 $ 5.965.000 

The County's general obligation bond rating is Aa2, a rating that has been assigned by national rating 
agency, Moody's Rating Service. The Kentucky Revised Statutes provide that a county will not incur 
net indebtedness for all purposes that exceed an amount equal to two percent (2%) of the value of 
the taxable property within the County's limits. According to Boone County's 2001 assessment this 
2% total direct debt limitation is more than $159 million dollars, which far exceeds the County's 
outstanding debt. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET 

While establishing the FY2004 budget, the administration was very conservative in regards to 
projecting tax revenue due to the downturn in the economy. Even though the County's tax base 
continues to grow, the demand for services and programs the County is expected to provide is 
growing at a more rapid pace. At this time, the County does not expect any significant changes from 
FY2003 to FY2004. 

MODIFIED APPROACH FOR INFRASTRUCTURE 

There were no significant changes in the assessed condition of eligible infrastructure assets from 
previous condition assessments. The current assessed condition of the roads exceeds the minimum 
condition level set by the Fiscal Court. Actual costs to maintain and preserve the roads were slightly 
lower than estimated costs. 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Boone County's Financial 
Statements for all interested in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the 
Boone County Treasurer, PO Box 960 (2950 Washington), Burlington, KY 41005. 
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BOONE COUNTY 

June 30,2003 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - MODIFIED CASH BASIS 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 
I nventory 
Accounts Receivable 
Due from Boone County Golf Course 
Notes Receivable 

Total Current Assets 

Non-current Assets 
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 

Land 
Land Improvements 
Buildings and Building Improvements 
Furniture and Office Equipment 
Vehicles and Equipment 
Construction in Progress 

Depreciation 
Construction in Progress 
Restricted Cash 
Deferred Charges 

Infrastructure Assets, Net of Accumulated 

Total Non-current Assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 

Capital Lease, Due Within One Year 
Bonds Payable, Due Within One Year 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Payroll 
Accrued Interest 
Accrued Other 

Total Current Liabilities 

Non-current Liabilities 
Restricted Cash 
Compensated Absences Payable 
Due to General Fund 
Due to Public Properties 
Capital Lease, Due in More then One Year 
Bonds Payable, Due in More than One Year 

Total Non-current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Primary Government 
Business- 

Governmental Type Component 
Activities Activities Totals Unit 

$ 13,240,985 $ 497,773 $ 13,738,758 $ 148,207 
27,444,601 27,444,601 

30,409 30,409 
142,489 25,358 16'7,847 
150,000 150,000 

1,212,000 1,212,000 

42,190,075 553,540 42,743,615 148,207 - 

8,019,655 2,396,478 10,416,133 
1,649,293 2,795,914 4,445,207 

22,089,723 1,255,747 23,345,470 

3,310,166 173,591 3,483,757 
12,347,109 12,347,109 

2,421,786 20,992 2,442,778 21,220 

130,276,580 130,276,580 

11,921 321,400 333,321 
763,367 763,367 

187,853,722 21,220 180,126,233 7,727,489 

222,3 1 6,308- 8,281,029 230,597,337 169,427 

565,932 565,932 
2,705,000 490,000 3,195,000 

3,560 172,966 176,526 5,456 
26,184 26,184 30,615 
33,840 33,840 
63,762 63,762 5,611 

3,274,492 786,752 4,061,244 41,682 

11,921 11,921 
92,490 92,490 55,680 

465,000 465,000 
150,000 150,000 

1,969,223 1,969,223 
56,070,000 5,475,000 61,545,000 

58,051,144 6,182,490 64,233,634 55,680 

61,325,636 6,969,242 68,294,878 97,362 

144,559,157 677,722 145,236,879 21,220 
282,000 282,000 

16,431,515 352,065 16,783,580 50,845 

$ 160,990,672 $ 1,311,787 $ 162,302,459 $ 72,065 Total Net Assets 

See accompanying notes 
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BOONE COUNTY 

Year Ended June 30,2003 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - MODIFIED CASH BASIS 

Net (Disbursements) Receipts 
and Changes in Net Assets 

Program Revenues Received Primary Government 
Operating Capital Business 

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Type Component 
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Unit Functions 

Governmental Activities 
General Government and Administration 
Protection to Persons and Property 
General Health and Sanitation 
Social Services 
Recreation and Culture 
Roads 
Interest on Long-Term Deb! 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-Type Activities 
Jail Canteen Fund 
Golf Course Fund 
Assisted Housing 

Total Business-Type Activities 

Total Primary Government 

Component Unit 
Public Safety Communication Center 

$ 21,842,668 $ 360,939 $ 7,558,113 $ - $ (13.923,616) $ - $ (13,923,616) 
8,285,196 3,173,100 925,291 11,583 (4,175,222) (4,175,222) 
3,029,093 2,111.879 1,463,770 779,425 1,325,981 1,325,981 
1,655,034 44,314 1,380,145 (230,575) (230,575) 
1,993,600 100,337 55,032 (1,838,231) (1,838,231) 
7,225.364 592,555 534,793 3,706,349 (2,391,667) (2,391.667) 
2.491.778 69,928 (2,421,850) (2,421.850) 

46,522.733 6,453,052 11,917,144 4,497.357 (23.655,l 80) (23.655.1 80) 

144.191 148.528 4.337 4,337 
2,731,535 2,371,555 (359.980) (359.980) 
4,097,548 4,181,895 84,347 84,347 

6,973,274 2,520,083 4,181,895 (271,296) (271.296) 

$ 53,496,007 $ 8,973,135 $ 16,099,039 $ 4,497.357 $ (23,655,180) $ (271.296) $ (23,926,476) 

$ 25,155 

General Revenues 
Taxes 

Property Taxes $ 
Occupationai Taxes 
Franchise Fees 

Reimbursements 
License Fees and Permits 
ExcessFees 
Rentalllncome 
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 
Donated Capital Assets 
Miscellaneous Revenues - 

9.174.093 
13,803,909 

1,154,428 
9,230 

188,306 
685,596 

10.000 
981,662 
670.527 
131,075 

$ - $ 9,174,093 $ 
13,803,909 
1,154,428 

9,230 
188,306 
685,596 

10,000 
15,154 996,816 783 

670,527 
131,075 

Total Generai Revenues 26,808,826 15,154 26.823,980 783 

Change in Net Assets 3.1 53,646 (256,142) 2,897,504 25,938 

Net Assets July 1.2002 157,837,026 1,567,929 159,404,955 46,127 

NetAssets June 30, 2003 $ 160,990,672 $ 1,311,787 $ 162,302,459 $ 72,065 

See accompanying notes. 



BOONE COUNTY 

June 30,2003 
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - MODIFIED CASH BASIS 

Major Funds 

Road and School Public Capital Other Total 
General 

Fund 
Bridge 
Fund 

Jail 
Fund 

Assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 6,467,961 
Investments 142,899 
Notes Receivable 1,212,000 
Accounts Receivable 
Due from Boone County Golf Course 
Restricted Cash 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 
Liabilities 

Restricted Cash 

11,921 

$ 7,834,781 

$ 11,921 

Fund Balances 
Reserved for: 
Encumbrances 
Road Projects 
Special Projects 
Contractual Tax Agreements 
Debt Service 

tinreserved - General 
Unreserved - Special Revenue 
Unreserved - Capital Projects 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and 
Fund Balances 

$ 1,119.411 $ 166,983 

$ 1,119.411 

!+ 

$ 166,983 

$ 

92,832 

142,900 

7,587,128 

194,275 
925,136 

180 

166,803 

7,822,860 

$ 7,834,781 

1,119.411 

$ 1,119,411 

166,983 

$ 166,983 

Board Tax Safety Improvements Governmental Governmental 
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds 

$ 494,240 $ 640,589 $ 1,798,210 $ 2,553,591 $ 13,240,985 
525,286 20,800,542 5,975,874 27,444,601 

1.212,ooo 
142,489 142,489 
150,000 150,000 

11,921 

$ 494,240 $ 1,165,875 $ 22,598,752 $ 8,821,954 $ 42,201,996 

$ - $  - $  - $  3,560 $ 15,481 

18,679 

494,240 

1,147,196 

334,091 

16,663,230 

5.601.431 

5,109 

714,857 
7,4 18.2 15 
6,115.825 

292,487 
271,901 

645,166 
925,136 

17.520,987 
1 ,9 12,455 
6,115,825 
8,046,418 
1,419,097 
5.601.431 

42,186,515 494,240 1.165,875 22,598,752 8,818,394 

$ 494,240 $ 1,165,875 $ 22,598,752 $ 8,821,954 $ 42,201,996 

See accompanying notes 
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BOONE COUNTY 
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO 

THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - MODIFIED CASH BASIS 
June 30,2003 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets - modified cash basis 
are different because: 

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds $ 42,186,515 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and therefore are not reported as assets in 
governmental funds. 

The Cost of Capital Assets is 194,475,885 
Accumulated Depreciation is 14,361,573 

180,114,312 

Due within One Year 
Bonds, Notes and Lease Principal Payments 

Due in More than One Year 
Bonds, Notes and Lease Principal Payments - 58,039,223 -- 

3,270,932 

- (61,3 10,155) 

Total Net Assets - Governmental Activities $ 160,990,672 

See accompanying notes. 
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BOONE COUNTY 

Year Ended June 30,2003 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - MODIFIED CASH BASIS 

Revenues 
Taxes 
In Lieu Tax Payments 
Excess Fees 
Licenses and Permits 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for Services 
Miscellaneous 
Interest 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
General Government 
Protection to Persons and 

General Health and 

Social Services 
Recreation and Culture 
Roads 
Debt Service 
Capital Projects 
Administration 

Property 

Sanitation 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures Before 
Transfers and Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Capitai Lease Pnncipal 

Transfers to Other Funds 
Transfers from Other Funds 
Bond Principal Payments 
Bond Proceeds 

Payments 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances - Beginning 

Fund Balances - Ending 

Major Funds 
Road and School Public Capital Other Total 

General 
Fund 

$ 23,055,443 
50,179 

685,936 
1,255,401 
2,870,067 

339,102 
576,802 
277,127 

29.1 10.057 

3,692,450 

6,742,671 

412.420 
1,060,103 
1,195,080 

1,336,382 

10,352,034 

24,791,140 

4.318.917 

(48,000) 
(35,088,825) 

370,012 
(1,565.000) 

127.046 

(36 ~ 204,76 7) 

(31,885,850) 

39.708,710 

$ 7.822.860 

Bridge Jail 
Fund Fund 

$ - $  

89,431 
1,699,477 1.658,557 

11 0,782 235.884 
505.295 49,024 

19.984 2,109 

2,424,969 1,945574 

1,704,087 

6,516,090 

453,652 

6,516,090 2.1 57,739 

Board Tax Safety Improvements Governmental Governmental 
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds 

4,808.492 $ 961,976 

178.579 

10,625 27,330 

$ - $ 3,232.485 

815,059 895.803 
2,029,370 

1.627.177 10,905 
702,037 225.414 

$ 32,058,396 
50,179 

685,936 
1.344,832 
8,117,542 
2,715,138 
2,769,203 
1,264,626 

4,819,117 1,167,885 6,393,977 49,005.852 3.144.273 

7,380 3,699,830 

8,470,522 

2.617.919 
1,629,830 
1,196,405 
6,516.090 
2.491.778 131.723 

936.1 13 16,184,088 4,182,613 21,302,814 
17,002.463 4.324,877 260.867 

4,324,877 1,328.703 16,184,088 9,625,014 64,927.651 

23,764 

2,205,499 
569,727 

1,325 

1,023,673 

1,611,033 

(4,091,121) (21 2,165) 494.240 (160,818) (13,039,815) (3,231.037) (15,921,799) 

4,000,000 300,000 

4,000.000 300,000 

(91,121) 87,835 

1,210.532 79,148 

$ 1,119,411 $ 166,983 

(571,714) 

30,073,064 

5,565,503 

(571,714) 35,638,567 

494,240 (732,532) 22.598.752 

1,898,407 

$ 494.240 $ 1.165.875 $ 22.598.752 

(214.513) 
4,880 

(575.000) 

(784,633). 

(4,015.670) 

12,834,064 

$ 8.818.394 

(619,714) 
(35.303.338) 
34,747.956 
(2,140,000) 
5,692549 

2,377,453 

(1 3,544,346) 

55,730,861 

$ 42,186,515 

See accompanying notes. 
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BOONE COUNTY 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO 
THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - MODIFIED CASH BASIS 

Year Ended June 30,2003 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets 
are different because: 

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds $ (13,544,346) 

Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in 
governmental funds as expenditures. However, for governmental 
activities those costs are shown in the statement of net assets and 
allocated over their estimated useful lives as annual depreciation 
expense in the statement of activities. This is the amount by which 
depreciation exceeds capital outlays in the period. 

Depreciation Expense 2,022,450 
Capital Outlays (20,427,368) 

18,404,918 

The proceeds from the issuance of bonds provide current financial 
resources and are reported in the fund financial statement but t h e y  
are presented as  liabilities in the statement of net assets. 

Repayment of bond and capital lease principal is an expenditure in the 
governmental funds  but it reduces long-term liabilities in the  statement of 
net assets and does not affect the  statement of activities. 

Donated Capital assets 

Net transfers from Boone County Fiscal Court to the Golf Course 
d u e  to different year ends 

Total Change in Net Assets - Governmental Activities 

(5,692,549) 

2,759,714 

670,527 

555.382 

$ 3,153,646 

See accompanying notes. 
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BOONE COUNTY 
STATEMENTOFNETASSETS 

PROPRl ETARY FU N DS 

Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Inventory 
Accounts Receivable 

Total Current Assets 

Non-current Assets 
Land 
Land Improvements 
Buildings and Building Improvements 
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment 
Furniture and Office Equipment 

Less Accumulated Depreciation 

Net Capital Assets 
Restricted Cash 
Deferred Charges 

Total Non-current Assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 

Bonds Payable, Due Within One Year 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Payroll 
Accrued Interest Payable 
Accrued Other 

Total Current Liabilities 

Non-current Liabilities 
Compensated Absences Payable 
Due to General Fund 
Due to Public ProDerties 

June 30, December 31, 
2003 2002 

Jail Canteen Assisted Golf Course 
Fund Housing Fund 

$ 31,016 $ 423,878 $ 42,879 
30,409 

- 25,358 

31,016 449,236 I__. 73,288 

2,396,478 
5,523,656 
2,249,488 

19,970 1,109,527 

__ Totals 

$ 497,773 
30,409 
25,358 

553,540 

2,396,478 
5,523,656 
2,249,488 
1,129,497 

I 47,246 47,246 

67,216 11,279,149 11,346,365 
40,899 4,662,744 4,703,643 

26,317 6,616,405 6,642,722 
320,404 996 321,400 

763,367 763,367 

_ _ _ ~  _II 

346,72 1 '7,380,768 7,727,489 

31,016 . 795,957 7,454,056 8,281,029 

490,000 490,000 
142,475 30,491 172,966 

8,552 17,632 26,184 
33,840 33,840 

63,762 63,762 

__ 214,789 571,963 786,752 

18,740 73,750 92,490 
465,000 465,000 
150,000 150,000 

Bonds Payable, Due in More than One Year __I - 5,475,000 5,475,000 

Total Non-current Liabilities 18,740 6,163,750 6,182,490 

233,529- 6,735,713 6,969,242 Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 26,317 65 1,405 677,722 
Restricted 282,000 282,000 
LJnrestricted 31,016 254,111 66,938 - 352,065 

Total Net Assets $ 31,016 $ 562,428 $ 718,343 $ 1,311,787 

See accompanying notes. 
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BOONE COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

June 30, December 31, 
2003 2002 

Jail Canteen Assisted Golf Course 
Fund Housing - Fund 

- 

Totals 
Operating Revenues 

Governmental Grants 
Canteen Receipts 
Green Fees 
Power Cart Rentals 
Memberships 
Commission 
Pro Shop Sales and Pull Cart Rentals 
Miscellaneous 

$ - $ 4,169,563 
148,528 

$ 4,169,563 
148,528 

1,514,820 
560,447 
92,172 
75,861 

122,101 
18,486 

$ 

1,514,820 
560,447 
92,172 
75,861 

122,101 
6,154 12,332 

Total Operating Revenues 6.701.978 148,528 ____ 4,181,895 2,371,555 

Operating Expenses 
Cost of Merchandise Sold 
Educational and Recreational 
Housing Assistance Payment 
Salaries and Wages 
Employee Benefits 
Contract Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Golf Cart Lease 
Utilities 
Maintenance and Repairs 
Fertilizer and Chemicals 
Petroleum Products 
Uniforms 
Depreciation 
Other Operating Expenses 

125,349 
18,842 

79,015 

953,027 
21 1,988 
28,431 
13,250 

123,280 
164,815 
60,594 

227,014 
25,691 
12,124 

430,475 
40.538 

204,364 
18,842 

3,652,969 
1,245,144 

289,124 
34,131 
13,250 

123,280 
1 64,8 1 5 
60,594 

227,014 
25,691 
12,124 

443,580 
97,939 

3,652,969 
292,117 

77,136 
5,700 

13,105 
57,401 - 

Total Operating Expenses 6,612,861 144,191 4,098,428 2,370,242 

4,337 83,467 1,313 -- Operating Income 89,117 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 
Interest Income 
Interest Expense 

13,101 2,933 
__l 

(361,293) 

13,101 (358,360) 

16,034 
(361,293) 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (345,259) 

Net Income (Loss) 4,337 96,568 (357,047) (256,142) 

Net Assets July 1, 2002 1,075,390 1,567,929 465,860 26,679 

Net Assets June 30,2003 $ 31,016 $ 562,428 $ 718,343 $ 1,311,787 

See accompanying notes 
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BOONE COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

June 30, December 31, 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 
Receipts from Customers 
Receipts from Commissions 
Receipts from Governmental Grants 
Payments to Suppliers 
Payments to Employees 
Other Receipts (Expenditures) 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Non Capital 
Financing Activities 
Proceeds from Other Funds 
Payments to Other Funds 

Net Cash Provided by Nan Capital 
Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related 
Financing Activities 
Purchase of Capital Assets 
(Decrease) Increase in Restricted Cash 
Payments on Bond Obligations 
Interest Paid on Bond Obligations 

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related 
Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Interest Income 

Net Change in Cash 

Cash and Cash Equivalents July I ,  2002 

Cash and Cash Equivalents June 30,2003 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities 
Operating Income 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Loss on Disposal of Capital Asset 
Depreciation 
Change in Assets and Liabilities 
Accounts Receivable 
Inventory 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Payroll 
Accrued Other 
Compensated Absences Payable 

Net Cash Provided by 
Operating Activities 

2003 2002 
Jail Canteen Assisted Golf Course 

Fund __ Housing Fund 

$ 148,528 $ - $ 2,289,540 
75,861 

4,271,188 
(1 44,191 ) (3,68’7,330) (791,950) 

(295,274) (1,143,565) 
12,332 - 6,018 

4,337 300,916 435,904 

61 5,000 
(300,000) 

31 5,000 -~ - 

( 1 8,143) 
(269,687) 105 

(465,000) 
(290,480) 

(287,830) (755,375) 

13,101 2,933 

4,337 26,187 (1,538) 

26,679 _I__ 397,691 44,417 

$ 31,016 $ 423,878 $ 42,879 

$ 4,337 $ 83,467 $ 1,313 

880 
13,105 430,475 

101,625 
(4,747) 

128,576 (12,588) 
2,069 5,218 

(23,58 0) 
(5,226) 16,233 

$ 4,337 $ 300,916 $ 435,904 

Totals 

$ 2,438,068 
75,861 

4,271,188 
(4,623,471 ) 
(1,438,839) 

18,350 

741,157 

61 5,000 
(300,0001 

31 5,000 

( 1 8,143) 
(269,582) 
(465,000) 
1290,480) - 

(1,043,205) 

16,034 

28,986 

468,787 

$ 497.773 

$ 89,117 

880 
443,580 

101,625 
(4,747) 

1 15,988 
7,287 

(23,580) 
1 1,007 

!$ 741.157 

See accompanying nates 
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Assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

BOONE COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
June 30,2003 

Jail Self 
Prisoners Insurance 

Funds Fund 

ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Liabilities 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 

Net Assets 

$ 56,756 $ 94830 1 

56,756 250,608 

$ - $  697,893 

See accompanying notes 
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BOONE COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30,2003 

Self 
Insurance 

Fund 
Additions 

Contributions and Revenues 
Employer/Employee Contributions 
Deposits from Inmates 

Total Contributions and Revenues 

Interest and Other 

Total Additions 

Deductions 
Administrative Expenses 
Insurance Claims 
Check to Inmates 

Total Deductions 

Change in Net Assets 

Net Assets - Beginning 

Net Assets - Ending 

$ 3,180,907 
- 

3,180,907 

19,393 

3,200,300 

- 
3,429,843 

- 

(229,543) 

927.436 

$ 697,893 

See accompanying notes 
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BOONE COUNTY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Reporting Entity 

The financial statements of Boone County include the funds, agencies, boards, component units, and 
entities for which the fiscal court is financially accountable Blended component units, although 
legally separate entities are, in substance, part of the County's operations Discretely presented 
component units are reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to 
emphasize that they are legally separate from the County. 

Additional - Boone County Constitutional Elected Officials 

Circuit Court Clerk 
County Attorney 
County Clerk 
County Sheriff 
Property Valuation Administrator 
Jailer 
Coroner 

The Kentucky constitution provides for election of the above officials from the geographic area 
constituting Boone County. Pursuant to state statute, these officials perform various services for the 
Commonwealth of Kentucky, its judicial courts, the fiscal court, various cities and special districts 
within the County, and the board of education. In exercising these responsibilities, however, they are 
required to comply with state laws. Audits of their financial statements are issued separately and 
individually and can be obtained from their respective administrative offices. 

Blended Component Units 

The following organizations are shown as blended component units: 

The Boone County Public Properties Corporation (BCPP) was formed to act as an issuing agent for 
long-term debt, the proceeds of which are to be used for the acquisition and construction of public 
building facilities in Boone County, Kentucky. The governing body is the County Commissioners 
Separate financial statements are not required or prepared. The BCPP is a blended component unit 
because the boards are the same 

The Boone County Public Properties Corporation Golf Course (BCGC) owns and operates two golf 
courses on behalf of the County. Separate financial statements are not required. The BCGC is a 
blended component unit because the boards are the same. 

'The Boone County Assisted Housing Department provides rental assistance to low income families in 
Boone County, Kentucky under a contract with the 1J.S. Department of the Housing and Urban 
Development. The Boone County Assisted Housing Department is a blended component unit 
because the Boards are the same. 

21 



BOONE COUNTY FISCAL COURT 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Discretely Presented Component Unit 

The Boone County Public Safety Communications Center (PSCC) was created by an inter- 
governmental agreement between Boone County and three cities to consolidate the communications 
systems and the police files and records of the County and cities Complete financial statements for 
the component unit that issues them may be obtained at the entity's administrative office as  follows, 

Boone County Public Safety Communications Center 
Accounting Department 
8100 Ewing Blvd. 
Florence, KY 41042 

The following is a summary of certain significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of 
these financial statements. 

Basis of Presentation 

Government-Wide Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (Le. the statement of net assets and the statement of 
activities) display information about all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its 
component units. The statements distinguish between those activities of the Fiscal Court that are 
governmental and those that are considered business-type activities. 

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus 
This is the same approach used in the preparation of the proprietary fund financial statements but 
differs from the manner in which governmental fund financial statements are prepared. 
Governmental fund financial statements therefore include reconciliations with brief explanations to 
better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for 
governmental funds  

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and 
program reventies for each segment of the business-type activities of the County and for each 
function or program of the County's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are 
specifically associated with a service, program or department and are therefore clearly identifiable to 
a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or 
services offered by the program and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as 
program revenues are presented as general revenues of the County, with certain limited exceptions 
The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each 
business segment or governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of 
the County 

__ Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements are designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial 
management by segregating transactions related to certain government functions or activities The 
government uses funds to report on its financial position and the  results of its operations. A fund is a 
separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts Boone County Fiscal Court's Fund 
Types, a definition of each, and county funds  included within each fund type are listed below 

22 



BOONE COUNTY FISCAL COURT 

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

The government reports the following major government funds: 

General Fund 

This is the primary operating fund of the Fiscal Court. It accounts for all financial resources of the 
general government, except where the Department for Local Government requires a separate fund 
or where management requires that a separate fund be used for some function 

Road and Bridqe Fund 

This fund is for road and bridge construction and repair. 'The primary source of revenue for this 
fund is state payments for truck licenses distribution, municipal road aid, and transportation grants 
The Department for Local Government requires the Fiscal Court to maintain these receipts and 
expenditures separately from the General Fund 

Jail Fund 

The primary purpose of this fund is to account for the jail expenses of the County. The primary 
sources of revenue for this fund are reimbursements from the state and federal government, other 
counties for housing prisoners and transfers from the General Fund. The Department for Local 
Government requires the Fiscal Court to maintain these receipts and expenditures separately from 
the General Fund. 

School Board Tax Fund 

This fund is used to collect and remit the occupational payroll and net profit taxes collected on 
behalf of the Boone County Board of Education 

Capital Improvements Fund 

These funds are used to purchase and build capital assets. This fund tracks the funds to be used 
for these purposes. 

Public Safetv Fund 

These funds are spent for 91 1 emergency services; therefore the fiscal court maintains this fund to 
track the receipt and capital expenditures of the Boone County Public Safety Communications 
Center, which is a component unit 

The government reports the following major proprietary funds. 

Jail Canteen 

The canteen operations are authorized pursuant to KRS 441.135(1), which allows the jailer to sell 
snacks, sodas, and other items to inmates. The profits generated from the sale of those items are 
to be used for the benefit or recreation of the inmates. KRS 441.135(2) requires the jailer to 
maintain accounting records and report annually to the county treasurer the receipts and 
disbursements of the Jail Canteen Fund. 

Golf Course Fund 

The Public Properties Golf Course accounts for the activities of the Public Properties Golf Course, a 
blended component unit of the County. The Public Properties Golf Course owns and operates two 
golf courses. The Golf Course's financial statements are prepared for the year ended December 
31,2002 
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BOONE COUNTY FISCAL COURT 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Assisted Housinq Fund 

The Assisted Housing Fund accounts for the activities of the Assisted Housing Department which 
provides rental assistance to low income families under a contract with the U.S. Department of the 
Housing and Urban Development. The Assisted Housing Department is a blended component unit of 
the county. 

The government reports the following fiduciary funds: 

Jail Prisoners Fund 

The Jail Prisoners Fund is an agency fund that accounts for assets held by the Fiscal Court in a 
purely custodial nature. 

Self Insurance F a  

The Fiscal Count accounts for the health insurance of the County's employees through this fund 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, 
use or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function, 2) operating 
grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are 
reported as general revenues rather than program revenues. General revenues include taxes and 
unrestricted state funds. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods 
in connection with proprietary funds' principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. The principal operating 
revenues of the County's enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales in the Jail Canteen Fund 
and greens fees revenue in the Public Properties Golf Course. Operating expenses for enterprise 
funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital 
assets. 

Property Taxes 

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 Taxes are levied and are 
due and payable on November 1 of each year, and may be paid upon receipt of the notice at 
declining discounts through the month of February. All unpaid taxes on real and personal property 
become delinquent on April 1 of the year following the year in which the taxes were levied. 
Delinquent real property taxes bear interest at the rate of one and one-half percent per month, and 
interest continues to accrue until a certificate is sold at auction, from which time the interest rate shall 
be as bid by the buyer of the certificate. Personal property taxes bear interest at one and one-half 
percent per month from April 1 until paid. After May 1 of each year and following proper procedures, 
a court order may be issued to seize and sell the property 
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BOONE COUNTY FISCAL COURT 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Basis of Accounting 

New Accounting Pronouncements - Effective October 1, 2001, the County adopted the provisions of 
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements ”- 
and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments (GASB 34), GASB 
Statement No 37, Basic Financial Statements - and Managements’ Discussion and Analysis - for 
State and Local Governments: Omnibus (GASB 37), and GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial 
Statement Note Disclosures (GASB 38). The effect of adopting GASB 34 and GASB 37 is a change 
in the presentation of the financial statements GASB 38, modifies, rescinds and establishes certain 
financial statement disclosure requirements 

Due to the requirements under the Kentucky Constitution, for all fund types except for the Proprietary 
Funds, the County utilizes a modified cash basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of 
accounting other than U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Under this basis of accounting, 
assets, liabilities, and related revenues and expenditures are recorded when they result from cash 
transactions, with a few exceptions This modified cash basis recognizes revenues when received, 
except for the recording of long-term receivables and deferred revenue. Expenditures are recognized 
when paid, except for the recording of long-term obligations and amounts to be provided in future 
years. The Proprietary Funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting. 

The Proprietary Funds are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. lJnder the accrual basis 
of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is 
incurred or economic asset used Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting 
from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. 

Legal Compliance - Budget 

The Boone County budget is adopted on a cash basis of accounting and according to the laws of 
Kentucky as required by the State Local Finance Officer. The County JudgelExecutive is required to 
submit estimated receipts and proposed expenditures to the fiscal court by May 1 of each year The 
budget is prepared by fund, function, and activity and is required to be adopted by the fiscal court by 
July 1 

The fiscal court may change the original budget by transferring appropriations at the activity level, 
however, the fiscal court may not increase the total budget without approval by the State Local 
Finance Officer. Expenditures may not exceed budgeted appropriations at the activity level 

The Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Budget and Actual 
present a comparison of budgetary data in actual results. These funds utilize the same basis of 
accounting for both budgetary purposes and actual results. 

Cash and Investments 

Cash includes amounts in bank accounts, and investments are stated at cost Investments may 
include certificates of deposit on the financial statements; however, for the purpose of disclosing 
credit risk (Note 3), investments exclude certificates of deposit 

KRS 66 480 authorizes the County to invest in the following, including but not limited to, obligations of 
the 1Jnited States and of its agencies and instrumentalities, obligations and contracts for future 
delivery or purchase of obligations backed by the full faith and credit of the United States, obligations 
of any corporation of the United States government, bonds or certificates of indebtedness of this 
state, and certificates of deposit issued by or other interest-bearing accounts of any bank or savings 
and loan institution which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or which 
are collateralized, to the extent uninsured, by any obligation permitted by KRS 41 240(4) 
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BOONE COUNTY FISCAL COURT 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

inventories 

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-inlfirst-out (FIFO) method 

Capital Assets 

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary 
funds These assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds These assets are 
reported in the governmental activities column of the district-wide statement of net assets but are not 
reported in the fund financial statements. Capital assets utilized by the proprietary funds are reported 
both in the business-type activities column of the government wide statement of net assets and in the 
respective funds 

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and 
retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market values as of the 
date received The Fiscal Court maintains a capitalization threshold of five thousand dollars 
Improvements are capitalized; the cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the 
value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life are not. 

All reported capital assets, except for land and roads, are depreciated. Improvements are 
depreciated over the estimated remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. The County has 
adopted the modified approach method in valuing their roads. They manage the roads using an 
asset management system and preserve the roads at or above a minimum condition level established 
by the County. Under the modified approach, expenditures made for roads (except for additions and 
improvements eligible to be capitalized) are expensed in the period incurred. Depreciation is 
computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives for both general capital assets 
and proprietary fund assets. 

Governmental Activities 
Description Estimated L i v L  

Buildings and Building Improvements 25-50 Years 
Land Improvements 20 Years 
Technology Equipment 5 Years 
Ve h icles 5 -  10 Years 
General Equipment 7 -  10 Years 

GASB 34 allows the government to report part of the infrastructure assets at transition. There were 
no infrastructure additions of bridges and sewers during the year. The County has three additional 
years to add infrastructure assets acquired between 1980 and 2002. 

Net Assets 

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities Net assets invested in capital 
assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of 
those assets Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use 
either through the enabling legislation adopted by the Board or through external restrictions imposed 
by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments 
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BOONE COUNTY FISCAL COURT 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Related Organizations 

A related organization is an entity for which a primary government is not financially accountable It 
does not impose will or have a financial benefit or burden relationship, even if the primary government 
appoints a voting majority of the related organization’s governing board. Based on these criteria, the 
following are considered related organizations of Boone County Fiscal Court: Boone County Water 
District, Boone County Extension District and the Boone County Public Library 

NOTE 2 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

The County has elected to participate in the County Employees Retirement System (CERS), pursuant 
to KRS 78.530 administered by the Board of Trustees of the Kentucky Retirement Systems, This is a 
multiple-employer public retirement system which covers all eligible full-time employees. Benefit 
contributions and provisions are established by statute. Non-hazardous covered employees are 
required to contribute 5 percent of their salary to the plan. The County’s contribution rate for 
nonhazardous employees was 6.34 percent. Hazardous covered employees are required to 
contribute 8 percent of their salary to the plan The County’s contribution rate for hazardous 
employees was 16 28 percent. 

Benefits fully vest on reaching five years of service for hazardous and non-hazardous employees 
Aspects of benefits for nonhazardous employees include retirement after 27 years of service or age 
65. Aspects of benefits for hazardous employees include retirement after 20 years of service or age 
55. 

Historical trend information showing the CERS’ progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay 
benefits when due is present in the Kentucky Retirement Systems’ annual financial report. 

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

Deposits 

The County maintained deposits of public funds with depository institutions insured by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). According to KRS 66.480(1)(d) and KRS 41.240(4), the 
depository institution should pledge or provide sufficient collateral which, together with FDIC 
insurance, equals or exceeds the amount of public funds on deposit at all times. In order to be valid 
against the FDIC in the event of failure or insolvency of the depository institution, this pledge or 
provision of collateral should be evidenced by an agreement between the County and the depository 
institution, signed by both parties, that is (a) in writing, (b) approved by the board of directors of the 
depository institution or its loan committee, which approval must be reflected in the minutes of the 
board or committee, and (c) an official record of the depository institution. These requirements were 
met, and as of June 30, 2003, the County’s deposits were fully insured or collateralized at a 100% 
level with collateral of either pledged securities held by the County’s agent in the County’s name, or 
provided surety bond which named the County as beneficiary/obligee on the bond 

27 




